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 The Henry Watt House at 703 West High Street is on the front of a
lot which slopes down at the back to a lot facing Manchester Street
(Photo #2). It is on a triangular isAdnd bordered by the Jefferson
Street Viaduct, a concrete viaduct constructed over the L&N and
C&0 Railroads on the west; Manchester Street on the north and
West High on the south. The house (numbered 127 prior to 1902) was
formerly on the northwest corner of West High and Merino Streets;
between 1907 and 1920 the Jefferson Street Viaduct was opened and
between 1920-1934 Merino Street (originally called Locust) was closed
between Manchester and West High Streets. -

The house is a 2-story, 5-bay Flemish bond brick with hipped roof,
inside end chimneys, stone foundation and a walk-out basement
with fireplaces and brick floors (Photo #l1). It has facade windows
that are deeper than rear windows in the same rooms. The line of
former chair railing is at the level of the higher sills indicating
that the front windows were made deeper. They now have 2/2 paned
sashes.

The wing on the west side of the main block is l%-story and 2-bay;
its facade once was Flemish bond but has been rebuilt (Photo #3).

The window in the west gable of the wing has a 9/6-paned sash although
other windows match those of the main block (Photo #4). Both the

wing and the main block have overhanging cornices. The wing, probably -
added during Lexington's Greek Revival period (after 1834), appears

on the 1855 and 1871 maps of Lexington. An ell behind the wing (now
the kitchen) s shown on the 1871 map.

The front porch was added between 1896 and 1901. A l-story frame
and concrete block garage was attached to the east side of the house
in 1907-1934. The concrete floor of the front porch extends three bays
although the roof of the porch frames just the entrance with paired
columns of stone piers. Stone piers also mark the corners of the
porch floor. The door is flanked by pilasters with what appears to be
a remnant of an entablature above. There are bushhammered thresholds
with chiseled margins to the porch and at the front door. An iron
fence with the name of the Cincinnati Iron Fence Co. borders the
front of the lot. L-shaped galleries now enclosed are at the rear of
the main block and on the east side of the ell (Photo #2). The 1871
Birds Eye View of: the City of Lexington shows the galleries at walk-out
basement level and the floor above. The 1934 Sanborn Insurance Map
shows a third level in the rear, which is the overhanging second floor
porch. The entire porch area was enclosed and covered with clapboard
by the current owner's father between-1907 and 1934.

The main block of the house, dating from the early 1800s , is
basically two rooms with a center hall on both floors. The later
two-room w1ng and the ell have attic storage above. The enclosed

porches pr0v1de dining and breakfast room space on the first floor and
an additional room above.

(continued)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Henry Watt House at 703 West High Street (formerly 127 West High)
is a significant example of an early nineteenth century house. Later’
given G¥eek Revival woodwork, it remains an elegant and imposing
residence owned by one family for the last 79 years and the home
in the past of prominent Kentuckians. It is three blocks west of the
Lexington Civic Center and on one of the main westbound exits from
downtown Lexington.

The house is one of the few surviving hipped-roof dwellings in
downtown Lexington. An excellent adaptation of a building to terrain,
it has a walk-out basement to utilize the natural slope of the land
down to what was once Town Branch. The second level of the house
overlooked the stream, as did many of the early High Street houses
on the east side of Broadway (now destroyed). Interior woodwork
probably grained during the Greek Revival period, is an unusually
well preserved example of a skill now rare.

Henry Watt, listed as ropemaker on High Street in the 1818 City
Directory, inherited this property, which included a house and rope-walk
adjoining his residence on the east side, from James Kernes, his uncle,
in 1817. By February, 1819, he was in business ‘at this location,
according to an ad appearing in the Kentucky Gazette, which saids

HEMP - The highest price cash in hand given for Hemp - '

delivered at the Rope Walk formerly the property of

JAMES KERN, dec'd, on Water Street.

HENRY WATT

Watt resided here until his death in 1853. The following year his
property was conveyed to Richard Hawes, Jr., lawyer, second governor
og the Confederate Provisional Government of Kentucky and"the most
distinguished citizen of Bourbon County now living", according to
‘Collins' History of Kentucky (1874). s Hawes purchased the
property as the result of a suit, instituted by Henry Clay, admr. of
Debonis, sonlof Wilson C. Nicolas, dec'd., vs. Watts, which was
filed in 1827

Wesley C. gamilton. the next owner, was listed as a hemp bagging
manufacturer in the 1859-60 City Directory but by 1864-65 was in the
furniture store business while James Hamilton operated a rope walk
here. In 1866 Hamilton sold the property to Dr. George S. Savage,

lHawes owned the property for only a short time--less than one year.

(continued)
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Henry Watt House

In the first floor hall is a half-turn stair with landing.

The heavy newel post, railing and turned balusters are later but the
ornamental brackets on the step ends appear original (Photo #53). The
ash floor is carpeted here but can be seen in all but the room to the
west of the entrance hall. Narrow boards were laid there by relatives
of the present owner. The parlor east of the center hall as well as
the other rooms in the main block and wing have woodwork grained to
resemble other woods (Photo #6). The mantel in the parlor has been
similarly enhanced; it has fluted pilasters, a breakfront shelf and a
paneled frieze. White tile added in 1911 hides the original opening.
A wallpaper border in a floral design and pewter gas chandelier with
etched glass shades, representing the four seasons, are decorative
touches added with the owner's memory.

In the sitting room to the west is an original pegged press with
6-panel double doors below smaller l-panel doors (Photo #7). This
press is to the right of a Victorian mantel; there is a door on the
left of the mantel leading to the wing, replacing a matching press.
The line of a fiormemxthair rail can be seen on a wall of the sitting
room. The doorway leading to the enclosed porch is in the style of
the first period of the house; it has a paneled door jamb, pegged
threshold and 6-panel door (Photo #8).

The west wing has grained woodwork with Greek "ears" and an earlier
6-panel door that has been reused{(Photo #9 ). A “Victorian mantel is
found in the back bedroom in this wing. A board and batten door with
box lock has been reused in the breakfast room porch (Photo #0.),

In the upstairs bedrooms of the main block are early mantels,
built up of simple mouldings (Photo #ll.). Traces of a chair rail 1line
can be seen in later closets. A paneled door jamb between the west
bedroom and the hall contrasts with the *eared” door frame super-
imposed later (Photo #12).
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Bible agent. Mrs. C. V. Savage ran a select school here, according

to the 1867 City Directory. Dr. Thomas D. Kelley, who practiced
dentistry in Lexington for 67 years,2 and his family lived at this
address from 1871-1881. John Yellman, who manufactured hemp here in
1881-82, sold the hemp works to R. C. Morggn & Co., who operated the
business at 45 Merino until at least 1887;° he later sold the residence
to H. K. Milward in 1884,

Col. H. K. Milward was "one of the best known citizens of
Lexington."* 1Interrupting his law studies to enlist, he rose to command
the 18th Kentucky Veteran Volunteer Infantry during the Civil War.
Afterwards he was a newspaperman, businessman, county official and
eleven years postmaster as well as an active participant in the
different fraternal beneficiary orders. The Milward family lived at
703 West High until at least 1890, after which it was rented until
conveyed to Margaret E. Saunier in 1898.

Margaret's husband, Steven C., was the founder of a machine shop
in existence today on Saunier Alley. Eleven Saunier children grew
up in the house, where one of them still lives.

2 wThomas D. Kelley dies at home on West High*, The Lexington
Herald, September 13, 1930, p. 1.

31887 City Directory.

4George Washington Ranck, A Review of Lexington, Kentucky, As
She Is (New York, 1886), p. 125.
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Henry Watt House

Lexington peC 16 1977
Fayette County )
Kentucky - J\)N 20 917

Lexington-Fayette County Planning
Commission, 1" = 200', 1968,
Map 2. House is indicated by
black dot. '
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Henry Watf_H'ouse
Lexington DEC 16 1977
Fayette County '

Kentucky JUN 20 1977

Hart~-Mapother Map of Lexington,
Scale unknown, 1855,

Map 3. House is circled in
red. o
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Henry Watt House NG - f* 7
Lexington DEC N5 W

F tte C t N
b JUN 20 1977

pirds Eye View of the City of
Lexington, Scale Unknown, 1871,

Map 4. Henry Watt House circled
in red.
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Henry Watt House

Lexington pes e
Fayette County
Kentucky JUN 20 19"

Sanborn Insurance Map, University
of Kentucky Library, 1"
Map 5.

50', 1896.
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Henry Watt House

Lexington CPEC 181977
Fayette County
Kentucky JUN 20 1977

Sanborn Insurance Map, UniverS1ty
of Kentucky Library, 1" = 50',
1907,

Map 6.
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Henry Watt.House
Lexington DEC 16 1977

Fayette County '
Kentucky ‘JUN 201977

Sanborn Insurance Map, University
of Kentucky Library, 1" = 50',
1934.

Map 7.
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